MPC 4.a - Attachment 2 - CAC March Minutes Page 1 of 6

MINUTES

Citizen Advisory Committee
of the
Central Lane Metropolitan Planning Organization
Singer Room — Eugene Public Library — 100 West 10" Avenue
Eugene, Oregon

March 19, 2008
5:30 p.m.

PRESENT: Webb Sussman, Chair; Dave Jacobson, Vice Chair; Diana Alldredge, Wendy
Butler-Boyesen, Philip Farrington, Rich Hazel, Joseph Vardner, Francesca
Patricolo, Bill Morganti, Eleanor Mulder, Edward Winter, members; Kitty Piercy,
MPC liaison; Kathi Wiederhold, ByronVanderpool, Susan Payne, Lane Council of
Governments; David Helton, Oregon Department of Transportation; Rob Inerfeld,
City of Eugene; Linda Pauly, City of Springfield; Rob Zako, guest.

ABSENT: John Anderson, Sarah Strand, Damien Gilbert, Ryan Papé, members.

Welcome, Introductions, and Agenda Review

Mr. Sussman called the meeting to order and those present introduced themselves. There were no changes
to the agenda.

Comments from the Audience

Mr. Vanderpool announced that Andrea Reiner had been hired as the Lane Council of Governments
(LCOQG) transportation program manager and he expected she would attend the next meeting.

Rob Zako, transportation consultant, discussed the challenges of promoting public involvement in
transportation planning at a point when decisions were being made. He said the Metropolitan Policy
Committee (MPC) was the point of regional decision-making by jurisdictions that were based on local
planning and priorities. He referred to the Regional Transportation Plan, which contained $2 billion in
publicly-funded transportation projects to be built over the next 20 years.
Approve February 20, 2008 Minutes
Mr. Morganti, seconded by Ms. Butler-Boyesen, moved to approve the February
20, 2008, minutes as submitted. The motion passed unanimously.

Public Participation Plan (PPP)

Ms. Wiederhold reviewed the committee’s annual evaluation of the plan’s goals and objectives and
discussions about early public involvement in the transportation planning process. She said local

MINUTES—MPO Citizen Advisory Committee March 19, 2008 Page 1



MPC 4.a - Attachment 2 - CAC March Minutes Page 2 of 6

transportation planners from the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT), City of Eugene and City
of Springfield were at the meeting in response to the committee’s request for a round table discussion of
local planning activities and public involvement strategies.

David Helton, land use/transportation planner, reaffirmed that while ODOT’s most direct role was with
planning and construction of highways, it was a multi-modal agency concerned with all transportation
modes. He said ODOT was in the process of updating its public involvement policy. He said ODOT’s
primary activities included maintenance, construction, planning and policy. He distributed a handout and
described the public involvement opportunities in each of those areas. He said there were limited
opportunities related to maintenance, but citizens could make inquiries about those activities. He said
reviewed the opportunities for public involvement on construction projects, which varied depending on the
nature of the project. He listed current planning projects in the Eugene-Springfield area and said each had
a citizen’s advisory committee. He said ODOT activities were guided by a hierarchy of long-range policy
plans, including the Oregon Transportation Plan, Oregon Highway Plan and modal/topical plans and there
were public involvement opportunities associated with the development of those plans.

Mr. Farrington arrived at 6 p.m.

Rob Inerfeld, transportation planning manager, discussed the City of Eugene’s public involvement in
project selection and project construction. He said projects ranged from street reconstruction and traffic
calming to bicycle and pedestrian enhancements. He said the City engaged in outreach efforts for each
project to assure that residents and property owners in the affected neighborhoods were informed. He said
the extent of notification depended on the nature and scope of the project and projects were also
highlighted in City publications such as In Motion and the City Council newsletter. He described several
projects and the associated public outreach and participation activities. He said there was significant
public participation involved in the planning and project selection process. He distributed excerpts from
the City’s capital improvement program (CIP), which was the blueprint for the City’s investment of funds
in capital projects. He said the CIP was distributed to neighborhood associations and was the subject of
several public hearings. He noted it was based on prior planning processes, including TransPlan and a
variety of other plans. He thought that meaningful public involvement in designing the local
transportation system should occur with TransPlan updates.

Linda Pauly said she was involved in land use planning and the City of Springfield was exploring
innovative ways to reach out to the community, including citizen advisory committees for projects. She
agreed it was a challenge to involve a broader cross-section of the community and strategies such as online
surveys and planning workshop at schools were being used more frequently.

Ms. Payne noted that LTD staff could not attend the meeting but provided a written description of LTD’s
public involvement process.

Mr. Morganti complained about the condition of sidewalks in his neighborhood. Mr. Inerfeld replied that
people could report infrastructure in need of repair by calling 682-4800.

In response to a question from Mr. Jacobson, Mr. Helton said the five Oregon Transportation Commission
(OTC) members were appointed by the governor. The OTC was responsible for adopting the highest level
plans guiding ODOT’s activities.

Mr. Hazel commented that a reference in the Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) to the I-
5/Glenwood Area Planning Study (IGAPS) was very vague and did not provide any information about

MINUTES—MPO Citizen Advisory Committee March 19, 2008 Page 2



MPC 4.a - Attachment 2 - CAC March Minutes Page 3 of 6

which agencies were involved or how the public might seek to participate. Mr. Helton said the project was
initiated because ODOT Region 2 had a certain amount of planning funds available for projects where
there appeared to be a need; the IGAPS planning project arose because of construction of a new Willamette
River bridge and revitalization of Glenwood and information was vague because the project was on hold
and there was no information available. He said the funds had been allocated in the event the project
moved forward and at that time there would be extensive public outreach.

Mr. Sussman remarked that the UPWP should reflect the pending status of the IGAPS project so concerns
were not raised about the lack of specificity.

Ms. Payne reminded the committee that the UPWP was required to include information on any planning
projects that might occur during the next year, but was not intended to provide detail about the projects
themselves.

Ms. Mulder asked if the State had any leverage to encourage movement of freight from the highways to
rail. Mr. Helton said the State had little leverage over the operations of mainline railroads. He said
railroads were typically focused on intercontinental large freight volume users and were not particularly
interested in picking up one or two cars in different locations. He said one of the focuses of the
ConnectOregon Il program was to promote intermodal connections and local jurisdictions could apply for
funds to create connections between modes. He said ODOT was also promoting and support shortline
railroads that were more likely to pick up local freight.

Ms. Piercy suggested that the CAC could examine not just the number of opportunities for public
involvement but whether that involvement made a difference as a measure of how effective the
involvement was.

Mr. Winter asked if pesticides were used in ODOT maintenance projects and was public participation
involved in the decision. Mr. Helton said he was not certain if pesticides were used or if ODOT had a
policy regarding their use. He would follow-up on the issue.

Ms. Patricolo asked if there was an opportunity for public involvement in the prioritization of project
concepts at the local level before they became part of an adopted plan. Mr. Helton said TransPlan
contained pages of projects for which there appeared to be a need over the next 20 years and many of those
projects were only a vague reference to something that might be needed as the area grew. He said that was
the list from which projects were selected for the allocation of funds and that was the point at which public
input would be useful in identifying projects with the highest priority for funding.

Ms. Piercy left the meeting at 6:45 p.m.

Ms. Patricolo asked if it appeared the public input on those priority decisions was comprehensive. Mr.
Helton said as a practical matter federal laws dictated how federal funds could be allocated and used. He
said for example the MPO had little discretion to use funding generated by the gas tax for transit instead of
highways; public input that advocated for spending those funds on bicycle and pedestrian facilities could
have little impact on the MPQO’s decision because that decision was made at a higher policy level by the
legislature or Congress.

Mr. Sussman remarked that the MPO’s ability to be flexible was also constrained because project and
priority lists were already established by that point.

MINUTES—MPO Citizen Advisory Committee March 19, 2008 Page 3



MPC 4.a - Attachment 2 - CAC March Minutes Page 4 of 6

Mr. Helton agreed. He said when the MPO was asked by ODOT to determine its priorities for the next
State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) cycle, the region had already in previous cycles made
certain projects a priority and if a project was phased there was some obligation for the region to fund
future phases of that project instead of switching to another priority.

Ms. Payne pointed out that ODOT also provided a set of prioritization factors against which the MPO was
required to score its projects.

Mr. Vardner asked how the public was involved in selecting priorities from among the project concepts for
inclusion on lists in various plans. Mr. Inerfeld conceded that the City could do a better job of informing
the public about how staff developed recommendations to move certain projects from TransPlan into the
CIP or RTP. He said those decisions were based on input from the community regarding specific needs,
such as a bicycle facility, and the staff’s professional judgment regarding projects necessitated by the
community’s growth and development patterns. He said street projects were based on the condition of the
street.

Mr. Jacobson opined that the committee had been on a “wild goose chase.” He said while there were
people expressing concern that the public was not involved, it was clear from the presentations that there
were multiple opportunities for public participation at every step in the process for every project. He was
not certain it was necessary to change the PPP or simply make people aware that the opportunities existed.
He said the committee had assumed, based on others’ political agenda that opportunities for public
involvement were inadequate, but that was wrong. He felt jurisdictions could be encouraged to enhance
their existing efforts to reach out and inform the community about those opportunities.

The committee took a short break.

Ms. Pauly pointed out that many projects originated with the City Council during its annual goal-setting
process based on input from constituents and staff about community needs.

Mr. Jacobson advocated for the idea of a central calendar that reflected the various public meetings held by
jurisdictions throughout the County. He emphasized that the meetings were happening and it was just a
matter of assuring that people were aware of them; those who were interested would attend. He did not
think there was validity to the assertion that the public was excluded from the decision-making process.

Ms. Butler-Boyesen observed that transportation planning was very long-range and there were new
stakeholders at the point when a project moved to construction than were involved when the project was in
the planning and prioritization phases. She said that was a problem inherent in the process and the CAC
could not solve it, but improved communication and improved strategies for getting information out to the
public would help.

Mr. Hazel agreed with the points raised by Mr. Jacobson and Ms. Butler-Boyesen, but stressed that until it
became more apparent to the public what the opportunities for input were and why they were more
important that fact that the opportunities existed had less value. He said transportation planning was a
complex process and jurisdictions needed to make a more concerted effort to ask people what they wanted,
until that occurred public involvement would be weak.

Mr. Sussman asked if the CAC would consent to the officers meeting with staff to summarize

recommendation to the MPC based on the committee’s discussion. He said the recommendations would be
presented to the committee for concurrence at its April meeting.

MINUTES—MPO Citizen Advisory Committee March 19, 2008 Page 4



MPC 4.a - Attachment 2 - CAC March Minutes Page 5 of 6

Ms. Alldredge agreed that the impact of the recommendations would be greater it they were formally
endorsed by the full committee and accompanied by minutes.

Draft Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

Mr. Vanderpool said the UPWP was a key annual produce of the MPO. He said it compiled all of the
planning activities that would or potentially could be undertaken within the MPO during the coming year.
He said the intent was to inform the public and highlighted sections related to key issues addressed in the
work program and challenges and concerns for transportation planning in the MPO. He reviewed the
opportunities for public input and invited CAC members to submit their comments.

Mr. Sussman said the CAC typically operated on very short timelines and encouraged members to use
email as a tool for submitting comments.

Mr. Farrington remarked that the CAC had a difficult time synchronizing with the MPQO’s process. He
urged staff to find ways to provide ample lead time on issues so that committee members could provide
thoughtful, constructive input.

Ms. Wiederhold said that a two-hour meeting once a month was inadequate to accomplish all of the tasks
facing the committee. She suggested the committee consider using subcommittee’s to explore some issues
in greater depth and report back to the full committee or increasing the length or frequency of meetings.

Mr. Farrington noted that the MPC would be ranking projects for ConnectOregon Il funding at its next
meeting and it would have been appropriate for the CAC to comment on that.

Mr. Vanderpool said the challenge was how to balance the committee’s work program and select the most
relevant issues for its consideration without overloading it, as had happened in the past. He was willing to
reconsider that approach if the committee wished to be involved in thoroughly processing all of the issues
that came before the MPC, but that would mean considerably more work.

Mr. Jacobson asked for a subcommittee to look at the UPWP.

Mr. Vardner was in favor of a subcommittee, but it did not appear there would be time for that if the MPC
was adopting the work program at its next meeting. He pointed out that the UPWP was inconsistent in
identifying the lead agency for projects, which would make it difficult for a citizen to determine where to
go for further information or to provide input.

Mr. Sussman asked for volunteers for a subcommittee to develop comments on the UPWP for submission
to the MPC.

Ms. Patricolo remarked that the full committee should be able to review the comments before they were
submitted.

Mr. Jacobson, seconded by Mr. Vardner, moved to extend the meeting by 15
minutes. The motion passed unanimously.

Ms. Butler-Boyesen volunteered to serve on a subcommittee if one was formed.

MINUTES—MPO Citizen Advisory Committee March 19, 2008 Page 5






